
GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, JANUARY 12, 2015 
 

WORK SESSION – 6:00 P.M.   

1. OPEB Discussion – Review Options and Alternatives and Provide Direction to Staff 

 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA  
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Approve December 22, 2014 Special Board Minutes  

2. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $434,998.59 (A/P checks of  

$242,449.88 and payroll of $192,548.71) 

3. Approve Millhouse Court Water Main Extension Bid Documents 

 

VI. PRESENTATION – EpicMRA  Pathway Survey 

 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Review 2014 Project List – Year End Review 

2. Approve 2015 Business Plan 

 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. First Reading - Ordinance Updating Fire Prevention Code Responsibility  

2. Accept Trustee Larsen’s Resignation and Provide Direction on Filling Vacancy 

 

IX. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Correspondence 

2. Committee Reports  

3. Manager’s Report 

a. November Legal Review 

b. December Building Report 

c. December Enforcement Report 

4. Others 

 

X. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENTS/QUESTIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS ONLY 

(LIMITED TO THREE MINUTES, PLEASE.) 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTE: The public will be given an opportunity to comment on any agenda item when the item is brought 

up for discussion.  The supervisor will initiate comment time. 



 

 -1- 

GRAND HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 22, 2014 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Grand Haven Charter Township Board was called to order by 

Supervisor French at 6:00 p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 

 

III. ROLL CALL 

Board members present: French, Larsen, Kieft, Hutchins, and Meeusen. 

Board members absent: Behm and Buitenhuis. 

 

Also present was Manager Cargo. 

 

Motion by Supervisor French and supported by Trustee Hutchins to appoint Treasurer 

Kieft as the temporary clerk.  Which motion carried. 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

 Motion by Treasurer Kieft and seconded by Trustee Larsen to approve the meeting 

agenda. Which motion carried. 

 

 V.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve December 8, 2014 Regular Board Minutes 

2. Approve December 10, 2014 Special Board Minutes 

3. Approve Payment of Invoices in the amount of $224,886.92 (A/P checks of 

$128,814.88 and payroll of $96,072.04) 

 

 Motion by Supervisor French and seconded by Trustee Meeusen to approve the items 

listed on the Consent Agenda. Which motion carried. 

 

VI. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Motion by Trustee Meeusen and seconded by Trustee Hutchins to appoint Trustee 

Larsen to fill the vacancy of Township Clerk, effective January 2, 2015. Which 

motion carried, as indicated by the following roll call vote: 

Ayes: Meeusen, Hutchins, French, Kieft, Larsen 

Nays:  

Absent: Buitenhuis & Behm 

 

VII. EXTENDED PUBLIC COMMENTS/QUESTIONS 

 None. 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Treasurer Kieft and seconded by Trustee Meeusen to adjourn the meeting at 

6:21 p.m.   



 

 -2- 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

William Kieft, III 

Temporary Grand Haven Charter Township Clerk 

 

 

Karl French 

Grand Haven Charter Township Supervisor 























































 

1 

Draft Date 

01/07/15 
FIRE PREVENTION CODE RESPONSIBILITY RESTATED ORDINANCE 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN, MICHIGAN 

Ord. No. _____, Eff. _______________, 2015 

 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR 

ENFORCEMENT OF A FIRE PREVENTION CODE AND TO PROVIDE 

PENALTIES FOR ITS VIOLATION. 

 

 THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF GRAND HAVEN, OTTAWA COUNTY, AND 

STATE OF MICHIGAN, ORDAINS: 

 

 Sec. 1  ADOPTION OF FIRE PREVENTION CODE; PURPOSE 
 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Public Act 359 of 1947, as amended, the Township adopts 

by reference the INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AND REFERENCE STANDARDS, 

2012 Edition, including the Appendix Chapters A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, I, and J, and the 

NATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION (NFPA) 101 LIFE SAFETY CODE, 

2012 Edition, which together create the fire prevention code (the "Code") of the 

Township. The Code is adopted for the purposes of protecting life, property, and public 

welfare from the hazards of fire and explosion, providing minimum standards for the 

design, operation, use, and maintenance of buildings and structures, and providing 

minimum standards for the storage, handling, or use of substances, materials, or devices 

involved in the use or occupancy of buildings or structures. In the case of any conflict 

between the provisions of the International Fire Code and the provisions of the NFPA 

101 Life Safety Code, the provisions of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code shall be deemed 

to control to the extent of the conflict. 

 

 Sec. 2  DESIGNATION OF ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 
 

 The Township's Fire Chief, or the Fire Chief's authorized representative, shall have the 

responsibility for enforcement and administration of this Ordinance and of the Code as 

the fire code official, and shall have the authority to enter premises for the purpose of 

inspecting them for compliance with the Code. 

 

 Sec. 3  ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, CHANGES 
 

 1. The following provisions or sections of the International Fire Code, 2012 Edition, 

are revised as indicated. 

 

  Section 101.1:  Title.  Grand Haven Charter Township shall be inserted. 

 

  Section 109.4:  Violation penalties.  Persons who violate a provision of this code 

or who fail to comply with any of its requirements or who erect, install, alter, 



 

2 

repair or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive 

of the fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this 

code, shall be responsible for a civil infraction, subject to a fine of $50.00, plus 

costs and other sanctions for each infraction.  Each day during which any 

violation continues shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense.  Increased 

civil fines may be imposed for repeated violations; a repeat violation means a 

second or subsequent municipal civil infraction committed by a person within any 

six month period and for which a person admits responsibility or is determined to 

be responsible.  The increased fine for a first repeat (i.e., second) violation shall 

be $250.00, plus costs and other sanctions.  The increased fine for a second repeat 

(i.e., third or subsequent) violation shall be $500.00, plus costs and other 

sanctions. 

 

  Section 111.4:  Failure to comply.  $50.00 and $500.00 shall be inserted. 

 

  Section 5704.2.9.6.1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and Class 

II liquids in above-ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited): within any 

residential zoning district in the township, or any non-agricultural zoned lot upon 

which a dwelling is located. 

 

  Section 5706.2.4.4 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and Class II 

liquids in above-ground tanks is prohibited): within any residential zoning district 

in the township, or any non-agricultural zoned lot upon which a dwelling is 

located. 

 

  Section 5806.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic 

fluids in stationary containers is prohibited): within any residential zoning district 

in the township, or any non-agricultural zoned lot upon which a dwelling is 

located. 

 

  Section 6104.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of liquefied petroleum gas 

is restricted for the protection of heavily populated or congested areas): within 

any residential zoning district in the township, or any non-agricultural zoned lot 

upon which a dwelling is located. 

 

 2. No provisions or sections of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, 2012 Edition, are 

revised or eliminated. 

 

 Sec. 4  LIMITATION 
 

 Nothing in this Ordinance or the Code shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding 

pending in court.  No just or legal right or remedy of any character shall be lost, impaired, 

or affected by this Ordinance or the Code. 

 

 



 

3 

 Sec. 5  SEVERABILITY AND CAPTIONS 
 

 This Ordinance and its various parts, sections, subsections, sentences, phrases, and 

clauses are severable. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, phrase, or clause is 

adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be 

affected. The captions included at the beginning of each Section are for convenience only 

and shall not be considered as part of this Ordinance. 

 

 Sec. 6    ADMINISTRATIVE LIABILITY 

 

 No officer, agent, employee, or member of the Township Board shall be personally liable 

for any damage that may accrue to any Person as a result of any act, decision, or other 

consequence or occurrence arising out of the discharge of duties and responsibilities 

pursuant to this Ordinance. 

 

 Sec. 7    REPEAL 

 

 All ordinances or parts of ordinances which are in conflict in whole or in part with any of 

the provisions of this Ordinance as of the date of this Ordinance are repealed to the extent 

of such conflict. 

 

 Sec. 8  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 This Ordinance was approved and adopted by the Township Board on _______________, 

2015, after its introduction and first reading on _______________, 2015, and after its 

publication in the manner provided by Public Act 359 of 1947, as amended.  This 

Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its publication following adoption. 

 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Karl French, Township Supervisor   Laurie Larsen, Township Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
GHCT 1060 Fire Prevention Code Responsibility Restated Ordinance 01072015



 

4 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

 I, Laurie Larsen, Clerk for the Charter Township of Grand Haven, Ottawa County, 

Michigan, certify that the foregoing Fire Prevention Code Responsibility Restated Ordinance 

was adopted at a regular meeting of the Township Board held on _______________, 2015.  The 

following members of the Township Board were present at that meeting: ___________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________.  The 

following members of the Township Board were absent: ______________________________.  

The Ordinance was adopted by the Township Board with members of the Board ___________ 

___________________________________________________________ voting in favor and 

members of the Board ______________ voting in opposition.  A Notice of Adoption of the 

Ordinance was published in the Grand Haven Tribune on _______________, 2015. 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Laurie Larsen, Township Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
GHCT 1060 Fire Prevention Code Responsibility Restated Ordinance 01072015 

















Page 1 

 

Administrative Services Memo 
 

 DATE:  January 6, 2015 

 

 TO:  Township Board 

 

 FROM: Proksa, Cargo, and Sandoval 

 

RE:  OPEB – Buyout Study 

 

 

As you are aware, the Board directed staff to have Watkins Ross prepare a buyout study to 

determine the past service liability of active employees in regard to Other Post Employment 

Benefits (OPEB).  This study was presented to the Personnel Committee in December 2014.  

This memo provides 1) a guideline for the resulting decisions which need to be made, 2) a 

review of information previously presented, and 3) information on deposit account options 

should a buyout be chosen.   

 

 

OPTIONS AND ADDITIONAL DECISIONS REQUIRED 

 

The current retiree health care program provides health care coverage for retirees between the 

ages of 60 and 65 and provides Medicare filler insurance coverage for retirees over the age of 65. 

Partial vesting occurs after 15-years of employment with GHT with the maximum benefit not 

occurring until after 30-years of service or the employee becoming permanently and totally 

disabled per the Township’s LTD plan and a minimum of 15-years of service.  You will recall 

that earlier in the year, the OPEB program was changed to only include employees hired on or 

before February 28, 2014. 

 

First, the Board will need to determine what its goal is in regard to OPEB. 

 

If the Township’s goal is to eliminate the unfunded accrued liability, it would be necessary to 

either place the pre-funded OPEB monies in a Trust Account (see Primary Option 1 below) or 

amend the program from a defined benefit retiree health care program to some type of a defined 

contribution program (see Primary Option 2 below). 

 

However, if the Township’s goal is to eliminate or reduce the labor costs associated with 

retiree health care, the option is limited to amending the program for non-union employees (see 

Primary Option 2 below). 

 

Below you will find the two primary options, including the additional decisions that will need to 

be made based on that choice.  (See page eight for a “decision tree” graphic.) 



Page 2 

 

 

Primary Option 1:  

Keep the OPEB program as-is in regard to the structure of the benefit. 

1 Does the Board want to put this money into a trust to eliminate the unfunded accrued 

liability? 

 

Primary Option 2:  

Opt to do a buyout of active employees and consider a restructure of the OPEB program. 

1 What type of account does the Board want to place the buyout money into?  The best type 

of account will be determined by decisions on some of the items below. 

a) Does the Board want to allow deposit of sick pay buyout to any account provided? 

b) Does the Board want to allow employees to deposit additional money into any 

account provided? 

2 Does the Board want to do some kind of defined contribution program in addition to the 

buyout (i.e. $500 per year into an account)?  This is not a requirement.  The Board could 

opt to do the buyout and offer no further benefit. 

3 How does the Board want to handle current retirees?  Does the Board want to place 

monies into a trust to eliminate any liability through pre-funding and ensure money is 

there? 

4 How does the Board want to handle the IAFF?  Recall this benefit is included in their 

contract ending 12/31/2018.  Does the Board want to place monies into a trust to eliminate 

any liability through pre-funding and ensure money is there? 

 

 

REVIEW OF TRUSTS 

 

With a trust, the Township would still have to recognize the OPEB liability on the balance sheet.  

However, any amounts that have been contributed so far would be used to lower that unfunded 

liability amount.  If funds were to be put in a Trust, there would be less restriction on the 

investing of those funds and there would be a greater potential to earn a higher rate of return on 

those monies that were invested.  Finally, if funds were to be put in a Trust they could only be 

used for the purpose of retirement health expenses.  The Township would not have access to 

these monies should a need arise.  However, the money would still be available to retirees if the 

plan were to close.   

 

Following is further information from Watkins Ross regarding trusts: 

 

 If individual accounts are set up, we would do some “settlement” accounting on the 

GASB to remove the active liability from the balance sheet. 

 There would be no ongoing GASB 45 accounting for that group as those individuals 

would only receive at retirement their account balance (that is, if there is no further 

obligation on the part of the township to contribute once the active employee has retired). 

 We would perform GASB 45 calculations only with respect to the remaining retired lives 

that would continue having medical costs paid or reimbursed by the township. 

 If a trust is set up that is still controlled by the township with an expectation that the 

township will use the money to pay future retiree medical obligations, then we would 

continue to value active employees in the plan but offset liabilities in the reporting by the 

OPEB trust.  The key in determining whether or not the active employees are considered 

part of the GASB calculation or not is whether the township has any ongoing 



Page 3 

 

responsibility (i.e., if individual accounts are set up and controlled by the participants; no 

GASB obligation for them.  If township controls the assets and retains responsibility for 

future costs; the GASB obligation for active employees remains.). 

 

Following is information from Burnham and Flower regarding their fees and handling of these 

accounts: 

 

The Post Employment Medical Reimbursement Plan (i.e., Retiree Health Savings 

Account) is a defined contribution style plan enabling employees to accumulate money 

while working to help pay for post employment medical expenses.  The employer defines 

the various provisions of the program such as eligibility, contribution sources and 

amounts.   

 

The cost for our program is 0.50% (paid as % of assets) and covers all services for the 

plan including:  

 

 Trust administration and document maintenance 

 Third-party administration services 

 Ongoing service and support 

 Recordkeeping and custodian services 

 CLS investment and portfolio management 

 

The 0.50% may be paid proportionately from participant accounts or billed to the 

Township.  The participant’s will also pay the underlying fund expenses of the 

investment options utilized within their account.   Fund expenses vary but average about 

1.00% - 1.20%. 

 

 

REVIEW OF WATKINS ROSS OPEB STUDY INFORMATION 

 

In brief, the 30-year ARC would be reduced from about $1.271 million to a 30-year ARC of 

about $463k associated with current retirees and union employees plus a projected non-union 

employee buyout of $510k (totaling about $0.973 million).  This would be a reduction of 

Township payments of about $298,000 over the 30-year period and would mitigate the 

uncertainty associated with future health care cost increases.   

 

The Township is pre-funding OPEB costs and currently has about $157,000 in an OPEB special 

revenue account.  But, because these monies are not in a Trust Account, the Township’s financial 

statements will indicate an unfunded accrued liability of roughly the same amount.   

 

The next several pages include the information from the study done by Watkins Ross. 

 



Page 4 

 

Illustration 1:  Liabilities if no changes are 

made.  See Definitions on Page 7. 

 

 

 

 

Illustration II:  Liabilities if money is put 

into a trust. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Illustration III:  Liabilities if the Township 

settles the active liability and only the 

current retirees and active fire fighters remain 

on the plan.   

 

 



Page 5 

 

Illustration V:  Settlement amount for the active liability by employee. 

 

 
 

Illustration VI:  Settlement payments if spreading the active settlement over 1, 2, or 3 years.  

Note:  The sum of 2 and 3 years exceeds the 1 year total due to interest crediting at 4% and 

retiree payments are projected OPEB retiree medical payments. 

 
 

# of Years Cost per Year Total Cost  Cost Difference 

Due to Interest 

1 $510,164 $510,164 n/a 

2 $260,083 $521,606 $11,442 

3 $176,766 $530,298 $20,134 

  



Page 6 

 

INFORMATION ON DEPOSIT ACCOUNT OPTIONS 

 

Options for depositing buyout monies include (1) Retiree Health Savings (RHS); (2) 401a Pension Deposit: (3) 457 Deposit; and, (4) Health 

Reimbursement Account (HRA).  All options allow the Health Savings Accounts we currently have for our health plan to be in existence at the 

same time. Burnham and Flower reported that there would not be any tax concerns with the deposits for any of the account types listed.   

 

Type of Account / 

Deposit 

Sick Pay or 

Vacation  

Deposits 

Allowed? 

Max Deposit 

Annually 

Which May 

Effect Buyout? 

Withdrawal Parameters Can 

Employees 

Contribute?  

Limits? 

Costs 

Retiree Health 

Savings (Section 

115 Trust) 

Yes for sick – 

mandatory 
election; 

Policy would 

need to be re-

written as 

money would 

go into RHS 

and checks 

would no 

longer be 

issued.  

No Money can be withdrawn 

after separation of service 

or retirement.  Money 

goes in pre-tax, grows tax 

deferred and comes out 

tax free.  Would allow 

employees to do an early 

retirement under our 

pension and get health 

care money at the same 

time. 

Yes – no limit; 

Options 

include:  EE 

mandatory pre-

tax or EE 

voluntary after-

tax  

No participant, setup, or 

withdrawal charges.  There 

is a.50% asset charge and 

fund expenses normally 

paid out of assets from the 

participant accounts (like a 

401a pension). The asset 

charge may also be paid by 

the Township in the form 

of a quarterly bill 

(calculated on total assets 

at the end of the quarter).  

401a Pension 

Deposit 

Yes for sick - 

on a voluntary, 

after-tax basis 

Yes – combined 

limit of $52,000 

annually  

Standard withdrawal 

parameters.   

Yes – limits 

apply - % 

would have to 

be determined 

No additional cost 

457 Deposit Yes – sick and 

vacation 
Yes - $18K Standard withdrawal 

parameters.   

Yes – limits 

apply - $18K 

per year 

No additional cost 

Health 

Reimbursement 

Account 

No No We specify the 

parameters. 
No May vary by vendor; 

Burnham and Flower does 

not offer to non-health 

clients 



Page 7 

 

It should be noted that with any of these options, the account will be controlled and invested by 

the employee.   

 

A “decision tree” regarding the two primary options is listed on Page 8.  The Board needs to 

provide some preliminary direction to staff based upon the information provided. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact any of us.  

 

 

 

Definitions: 

 

Present value future service – Projected cost for future (30 years) retiree health care premiums. 

 

Past service liability – Liability for current employees (active participants) and retirees (already 

earned). 

 

Service cost as of December 31, 2012 – Cost for one year of services for all active employees. 

 

Amortization of unfunded liability – Amortization of past service liability (already earned and 

spread over 30 years). 

 

Annual Required Contribution – Normal cost of 1 year service (service cost) plus amortization 

for current year of the unfunded liability (already earned). 

 



Page 8 

 

OPEB (Retiree Health Care) 
Primary Options

Continue Defined Benefit 
Retiree Health Care 

program for full-time staff 
hired before  March of 

2014

Discontinue Defined 
Benefit Retirement Health 

Care program

Create a Trust 
for OPEB 

contributions 
to offset 
liability

($1.27 million 
over 30 years)

Continue OPEB 
Program for 

IAFF and 
current 
retirees

Create a Trust 
for OPEB 

contributions  
to offset 
liability

($462k over 30 
years)

Approve Buyout of Active 
Full-time Employees

($510k) 
Determine to 

use a one, two, 
or three-year 

buyout 
proposal 

Determine into which 
Defined Contribution 

Alternative Buyout 
Monies will be 

Deposited
  

OPEB Option #1 OPEB Option #2

Health Retirement Savings (Section 115 Trust)
(Employees can contribute post tax, or if 

mandatory, the contribution would be pre-tax)

401a  Pension Account
(Employees can contribute post tax)

457 Deferred Compensation Pension Account
(Employees can contribute pre-tax with limits)

Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA)
(Employees cannot contribute; only Employer)

Determine if GHT will make 
annual contribution

Determine if GHT will make 
annual contribution

Determine if GHT will make 
annual contribution

Determine if GHT will make 
annual contribution

 


	01122015 - TB Agenda
	12222014 - TB Minutes
	2015 Millhouse Court Water Main Project
	Pathway Expansion Survey
	2014 Project List
	2015 Business Plan
	December Building Report
	GHCT 1060 Fire Prevention Code Responsibility Restated Ordinance
	International Fire Code 2012 Edition
	December Enforcement Report
	Memo - OPEB Buy Out Study 012015

